
  
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION COMMITTEE OF THE TOWN 
OF PINETOP-LAKESIDE, ARIZONA, HELD ON JUNE 17, 2015 IN THE TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS.  
Chairman Petersen called the meeting to order at 9:01 a.m. 
 
ROLL CALL:   Present   Absent    Present   Absent 
 
Chairman Joe Petersen    X                   Jeffrey McKee      X               _     
Vice Chair Rica Girardi      X                   Gil Armijo      X  _       _  _        
Lynn Krigbaum      X                Kathy Dahnk      X          ____       
Vacant - Sunrise                                   Steve Berman         _         X                 
Mayor Smith        _       X _     Diane Tilton  _  X          _                   
  
STAFF PRESENT:  Jill Akins, Assistant to the Town Clerk; Roger Williams, Councilmember and John Vuolo, 
Director of Parks and Recreation. 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  Sam John, Larry John Wright Advertising and Crystal O’Donnell, Director of Pinetop-Lakeside 
Chamber of Commerce.  
 
ITEM NO. 2, CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  
  
Chairman Petersen said there are two large business conferences in the area this week.  He said the hotels and 
motels in Pinetop-Lakeside are sold out.  He said the ASU Steakfry and High Mountain Musicfest would be held 
the weekend of June 20th.   
 
ITEM NO. 3, CONSENT AGENDA MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING HELD MAY 20, 2015: 
 
COMMITTEEMEMBER GIRARDI MOVED TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING HELD MAY 
20, 2015. COMMITTEEMEMBER DAHNK SECONDED THE MOTION AND IT CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.  
 
ITEM NO. 4, REPORT FROM THE BUDGET SUBCOMMITTEE ON THE ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION 
COMMITTEE BUDGET FOR FY 2014-2015: 
 
Barbara Ashley was not in attendance.  Chairman Petersen said the Holiday Inn’s second quarter is 
skyrocketing.  He said September would be an incredible month.  Chairman Petersen said the tentative budget 
had been passed by the Town Council. 
 
ITEM NO. 5, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION/LEGAL ACTION REGARDING WHITE MOUNTAIN NATURE CENTER 
REQUESTING FUNDING FOR PRINTING OF THE DISCOVERY PROGRAM FLYERS IN THE AMOUNT OF $350.00: 
 
Chairman Petersen said Lynn Krigbaum is requesting $350.00 for the printing of the Discovery Program Flyers 
for the Nature Center.  Committeemember Krigbaum and Dahnk had to excuse themselves from taking legal 
action due to a conflict of interest.   
 
COMMITTEEMEMBER PETERSEN MOVED TO REIMBURSE THE WHITE MOUNTAIN NATURE CENTER $350.00 
FOR PRINTING OF THE DISCOVERY PROGRAM FLYERS FOR THE NATURE CENTER.  COMMITTEEMEMBER 
TILTON SECONDED THE MOTION AND IT CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, WITH COMMITTEEMEMBER KRIGBAUM 
AND COMMITTEEMEMBER DAHNK ABSTAINING. 
 



ITEM NO. 6, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION/LEGAL ACTION REGARDING THE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 
REQUESTING FUNDING OF $250.00 TO PAY FOR THE WHITE MOUNTAIN APACHE TRIBE CROWN DANCERS TO 
PERFORM AT THE DINNER FOR THE HARLEY OWNERS GROUP: 
 
Committeemember Dahnk had to excuse herself from taking legal action due to a conflict of interest. Crystal 
O’Donnell said the White Mountain Apache Tribe Crown Dancers would be performing at the Harley Owners 
Dinner.   She said two to three hundred Harley Davidson motorcyclists would be riding from New Mexico to 
Tombstone in September.  She said the group would be staying in Pinetop-Lakeside for two nights, September 
15th and September 16, 2015.  She said Wednesday night the group would be gathering at Charlie Clarks for 
dinner, a live band and the Crown dancers would perform. Chairman Petersen said the Harley Corporation said 
the riders would only be staying in Pinetop-Lakeside accommodations.  He said it had been expanded to Hon-
Dah Resort Casino for an additional forty-five rooms.  He said this event would have over a $130,000.00 
economic impact on the Town.  Ms. O’Donnell said it would be called the Myths and Legends Tour and said 
there had already been articles in the Harley magazine.   She said the Chamber would have a tent the night of 
the Charlie Clarks dinner and would be handing out information.    
 
COMMITTEEMEMBER GIRARDI MOVED TO SPEND $250.00 FOR THE WHITE MOUNTAIN APACHE TRIBE 
CROWN DANCERS TO PERFORM AT THE HARLEY OWNERS DINNER.  COMMITTEEMEMBER MC KEE 
SECONDED THE MOTION AND IT CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, WITH COMMITTEEMEMBER DAHNK 
ABSTAINING. 
 
 
ITEM NO. 7, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION/LEGAL ACTION REGARDING THE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 
REQUESTING FUNDING TO PURCHASE AD SPACE IN THE PINETOP-LAKESIDE CHAMBER DIRECTORY 2015-2016: 
 
Committeemember Dahnk had to excuse herself from taking legal action due to a conflict of interest.  Ms. 
O’Donnell said last year the Ad and Pro Committee chose to pay $1,500.00 for advertisement in the Chamber 
directory.   She said on the top of each page Visitpinetoplakeside.com is listed.  She said she would like 
$1,500.00 from the Committee again this year.  She said the Directory is distributed at trade shows, Chamber 
events, local hotels and restaurants.   
 
COMMITTEEMEMBER MC KEE MOVED TO SPEND $1500.00 TO PURCHASE AD SPACE IN THE PINETOP-
LAKESIDE CHAMBER DIRECTORY 2015-2016. COMMITTEEMEMBER GIRARDI SECONDED THE MOTION AND IT 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, WITH COMMITTEEMEMBER DAHNK ABSTAINING. 
 
ITEM NO. 8, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION/LEGAL ACTION REGARDING THE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 
REQUESTING FUNDING TO PURCHASE BEST CABIN REGION BANNERS: 
 
Committeemember Dahnk had to excuse herself from taking legal action due to a conflict of interest.  Ms. 
O’Donnell said the funding would be for a large banner to be placed over the highway and two additional 
banners to be placed throughout the Town.  Chairman Petersen said the Committee would have to receive 
approval from the Town Council and then ADOT to hang the banner over the highway.  He said if it is 
approved, then the Committee would have to arrange to have Navapache or similar business to hang the 
banner.  Councilmember Williams said the Town Council recently approved a banner to hang over the highway 
and said he did not see a problem with receiving Council approval.  He said the banner could be allowed to 
hang as long as long as possible or until another group made a request.  Chairman Petersen said he would like 
to have a banner placed at the entrance to the Country Club.  John Vuolo said a mobile banner to move 
around to difference events, shows and festivals would be useful.  
 



COMMITTEEMEMBER GIRARDI MOVED TO NOT EXCEED $2,000.00 TO PURCHASE BEST CABIN REGION 
BANNERS, ONE LARGE BANNER AND TWO SMALLER BANNERS.  COMMITTEEMEMBER MC KEE SECONDED 
THE MOTION AND IT CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY , WITH COMMITTEEMEMBER DAHNK ABSTAINING. 
 
ITEM NO. 9, DISSCUSSION/INFORMATION/LEGAL ACTION REGARDING QUARTER PAGE AD IN THE ARIZONA 
CARDINALS YEARBOOK: 
 
Chairman Petersen said information was received regarding advertising in the Arizona Cardinals yearbook. He 
said the cost would be $1,500.00 for a quarter page advertisement and said the advertisement would 
normally cost $7,500.00 for the advertisement.  Sam John said the Cardinals sell ten thousand year books each 
year.  Mr. John discussed the audience profile reach of the yearbook. He said all advertising works and this 
would reach an outdoor and recreation audience.  Mr. Vuolo asked about the dramatic discount for 
advertising offered to us.  Mr. John said because they have not sold out on the advertising space and said they 
are at the point where they need to go to print. Discussion ensued regarding the audience advertisement 
reach. No motion was made. 
 
ITEM NO. 10, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION/LEGAL ACTION REGARDING UPDATE AND INFORMATION BY SAM 
JOHN OF LARRY JOHN WRIGHT ADVERTISING: 
 
Mr. John said Sonoran Living had put together another package for the Committee.  He said in the package 
approved last month by the Committee Sonoran Living does not let the segment be re-used or reviewed 
unless the segment is paid for.  He said we have to buy the segment.  He said he recommends the package 
costing $2,588.00.  He said with this package on-air segments are included and said re-airing of the segment is 
also included.  He said the segment would be played on the Sonoran Living Facebook page.  He said Sonoran 
Living fits the demographic in regards to age and income.  He said additional monies would need to be spent.   
He said his goal with the segment would be to talk about current events happening between now and the 
Tour of the White Mountains.  He said we have to increase the payment amount to own the segment.   
 
COMMITTEEMEMBER KRIGBAUM MADE A MOTION TO SPEND AN ADDITIONAL $148.00 FOR A TELEVISION 
SEGMENT ON SONORAN LIVING FOR PINETOP-LAKESIDE.  COMMITTEEMEMBER GIRARDI SECONDED THE 
MOTION AND IT CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
Mr. John said he would like to do a Sonoran Living segment again in July 2015 during the summer season.  He 
said Evelyn Racette, Town Manager, would be available to do a segment in July.  He said Crystal O’Donnell and 
Chairman Petersen would be on the June 2015 segment.  He said the shows would be live.  Mr. John said he 
would like to schedule a segment for July 2015.  Chairman Petersen said Ms. Racette would give history and 
culture on the Town along with events.  He said the segment is three minutes long.  He said it would give 
repeat exposure to the same audience.  Mr. John said the segment would be filmed the third, fourth or fifth 
week in July 2015.   
 
COMMITTEEMEMBER KRIGBAUM MADE A MOTION TO SPEND UP TO $1,648.00 FOR A TELEVISION 
SEGMENT ON SONORAN LIVING FOR PINETOP-LAKESIDE IN JULY 2015.  COMMITTEEMEMBER DAHNK 
SECONDED THE MOTION AND IT CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.  
 
Mr. John said he recommends OOTV during the month of July 2015.  He said he recommends $7,000.00 for 
July 2015 OOTV. He said he would like to continue the banner advertisements for July 2015. Mr. John 
explained OOTV, Banner Ads, statistics, analytics and impressions to the new members of the Committee.     
 



COMMITTEEMEMBER GIARDI MADE A MOTION TO SPEND $9,500.00 FOR TELEVISION ADVERTISING AND 
BANNER ADVERTISEMENT FOR THE MONTH OF JULY 2015.  COMMITTEEMEMBER DAHNK SECONDED THE 
MOTION AND IT CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
Mr. John said the Facebook contest had received a great response.  He said a drawing would be done on June 
20, 2015 for a finalist for the first post of the contest.  He said the second drawing would be on June 27, 2015 
and the final drawing would be on July 4, 2015.  He said there would be three different contest posts. He said 
the giveaway would be two night’s hotel stay and a fifty dollar restaurant gift certificate.  Ms. O’Donnell said 
most likely the winner would stay at Whispering Pines.  She said the Chamber would have more than the fifty 
dollar restaurant certificate to give to the contest winner.  Mr. John said there were twelve thousand people 
had seen the post, two hundred and ninety eight shares, one hundred and seventy three likes and one 
hundred and sixty eight comments.   Chairman Petersen said the light post banner design had been completed 
and would be given to High 5 Design on June 17, 2015.  He said a Town Councilmember had approached him 
and said they would like to see American flags on some of the light posts.  He said it would be additional 
money for flags banners the Committee would have to spend.  He said he did not know what the cost would 
be for flag banners.  He said the suggestions were for red, white and blue banners showing the American 
patriotism .  Ms. O’Donnell suggested banners saying “Arizona’s Recreation Destination”.  Committeemember 
McKee said he is patriotic but said he is interested on local event being advertised on the banners.  He said Ad 
and Pro Committee funds should be put towards advertising and not flags.  Chairman Petersen asked Mr. John 
to give an update on the temporary facelift being done to the website.  He said Mr. John is doing the update at 
no cost and on Mr. John’s free time.  Mr. John said the original face lift had changed and said he and his 
company had been putting in extra time and taken the facelift a little bit further than originally planned.  
Committeemember Girardi asked Mr. John when the update would be finished.  Mr. John said it would be 
finished by June 22, 2015.  Chairman Petersen said at the May meeting the Committee approved to advertise 
in the yearly Phoenix Magazine Travel Guide but said the deadline was missed.  Mr. John said he was not able 
to get an extension on the deadline.  He said the magazine would be doing an article in August 2015 on the 
entire White Mountain region.  He said the magazine offered a six time rate for a half page ad for $3,000.00.  
Mr. John said the ad was designed and ready.    
 
ITEM NO. 11, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION BY THE PINETOP-LAKESIDE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE ON 
FESTIVALS, ACTIVITES, STATISTICS, TRACKING AND TOURISM: 
 
Crystal O’Donnell said there would be a Music Festival on Saturday, June 20, 2015 from 12:00 p.m. to 8:00 
p.m. at PLAC&S.  She said there would be five different bands performing and twenty varieties of Arizona Beer 
for tasting.  She said she attended a national conference in Phoenix.  She said the Chamber Map would be 
done by the fourth of July. She said the Chamber Directory would be distributed in November 2015.   
Committeemember Girardi met with the Arizona Republic.  She said the Republic would have an article on 
Hawley Lake and other winter activities.  Committeemember Dahnk said the managing editor from Phoenix 
Magazine would be in Pinetop-Lakeside the weekend of June 20th.  She said the editor would be doing a story 
on the Best Cabin Region in the United States.  She said she would be staying at Lazy Oaks in a cabin on the 
water and said she would be visiting the Nature Center, attending the Musicfest,  horseback riding and visiting 
local restaurants.  Ms. O’Donnell said the walk in traffic at the Chamber has increased the last two weeks 
possibly due to the Valley weather conditions. She said on the cover of the Chamber map and the Chamber 
directory would be “Arizona’s Recreation Destination”.  She said inside the directory would be an article on 
winning the Best Cabin Region.     
 
 
ITEM NO. 12, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION BY THE TOWN OF PINETOP-LAKESIDE PARKS AND RECREATION 
DEPARTMENT: 



 
Mr. Vuolo said there are numerous events this weekend. He said there is a senior softball tournament the 
weekend of June 20th and said this would be the first of two annual senior softball tournaments. He said it is a 
three day tournament.  He said the benefit of senior and youth tournaments are they length of the 
tournaments which means more rooms and restaurants used which gives more economic investment in to the 
community. He said seniors do not buddy up with four people in a room.  He said the tournaments have two 
hundred and fifty to three hundred players and said this does not include the family or spectators that attend.   
He said the ASU Steakfry would also be the weekend of June 20th along with a Discovery Program at the 
Nature Center, Music Festival and a Father’s Day Fishing Tournament.  He said the weekend of June 27th there 
would be a dog agility competition and a disc golf tournament at Mountain Meadow.  He said in July there 
would be Medieval Mayhem, the second senior softball tournament, dog agility and soccer sports camps.     
 
ITEM NO 13, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION BY THE ARIZONA GAME AND FISH DEPARTMENT: 
 
Committeemember Tilton said Saturday, June 20, 2915 there would be a fishing derby at Fool Hollow Lake. 
She said on Saturday, June 27th would be the first of the summer Wild Life series at the Game and Fish 
Department and the topic would be owls.  She said the Game and Fish office originally was a federal fish 
hatchery in the 1930s.  She said the Game and Fish Department are making ponds and water falls at the 
department.  She said there would also be a wetland.  She said two ponds would be used for endangered fish 
and would be used for fish in case of a fire.  She said on July 18, 2015 there would be a talk and a tour of the 
ponds.  She said the ponds are for public access and would have a view platform and signage.  She said at the 
Fall Festival there would be an outdoor area on one of the Mountain Meadow ballfields.   
 
ITEM NO. 14, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION REGARDING TOURISM ACTIVITIES ON TRIBAL LANDS: 
 
Chairman Petersen said there was no one in attendance from Sunrise or Hon-Dah for an update. He said he 
attended a tribal council meeting and would give an update.  He the contract for the zip lines at Sunrise are in 
the lawyer’s hands.  He said there would be six zip lines at Sunrise.  He said the plan is for the zip lines to open 
in the fall of 2015.   He said two lines will remain up and running during the winter.  He said Sunrise is 
currently open, Friday, Saturday, Sunday and Monday.  He said Sunrise is approved to have Fireworks on the 
fourth of July.    
 
 
 
 
  
The meeting adjourned at 10:46 a.m.  
       Advertising and Promotion Committee 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
        Jill Akins, Assistant to the Town Clerk 
        


